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The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited2

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors present the 89th Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2019.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:                  (Amount in `)

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation, Finance Cost & Tax (1,952,530) (1,433,977)

Less : Depreciation 28,217 30,268

Less : Finance Cost 1,968,492 1,448,268

Profit /(Loss) before Tax (3,949,239) (2,912,513)

Less : Tax Expense - -

Profit /(Loss) after Tax (3,949,239) (2,912,513)

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) - -

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the Company (3,949,239) (2,912,513)

Surplus/(deficit) brought forwards from previous year (24,528,330) (21,615,817)

Balance carried to Balance Sheet (28,477,569) (24,528,330)

DIVIDEND:

In view of accumulated losses, your Directors regret their inability to propose any dividend for the year ended 31st 

March, 2019.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

The Rubberwood Factory has not been in opera!on for nearly 21 years pursuant to no!ce received from the Deputy 

Conservator of Forests (Protec!on), Trivandrum. The Company is developing its land assets in Goa based on which the 

going concern status of the Company is maintained.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any public deposits and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on public 

deposits was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has not granted loans or given guarantees or made investments during the year under review.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

In accordance with the provisions of the Ar!cles of Associa!on of the Company read with Sec!on 152 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, Shri C. P. Sharma, Director (DIN : 00258646), will re!re by rota!on at the forthcoming Annual General Mee!ng 

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment to the members of the 

Company in the ensuing Annual General Mee!ng.

During the year, Shri B.L. Surana, Independent Director of the Company, resigned from the Board.

The Board placed on record its deep apprecia!on for the valuable contribu!on made by Shri B.L. Surana during the 

tenure of his Directorship.

During the year, Shri M. Kandoi, has been appointed as Company Secretary in the category of Key Managerial Personnel 

w.e.f. 12th November, 2018. The Company has three Key Managerial Personnel, being Shri R.K. Gupta, Whole!me 

Director and Shri A.K. Ruia, Chief Financial Officer and Shri M. Kandoi, Company Secretary respec!vely. 

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, four Board Mee!ngs were held on 7th May, 2018, 7th August, 2018, 

12th November, 2018 & 4th February, 2019. The intervening gap between any two mee!ngs was within the period 

prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

All Independent Directors have submi!ed their disclosures to the Board that they meet the criteria as s"pulated in 

Sec"on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with Regula"on 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regula"ons, 

2015. None of the Independent Directors are liable to re"re by rota"on.

As s"pulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013, a separate mee"ng of the 

Independent Directors of the Company was held on 4th February, 2019 to review the performance of Non-Independent 

Directors and the Board as whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and "meliness of the 

flow of informa"on between the Management and the Board and its Commi!ees which is necessary to effec"vely and 

reasonably perform and discharge their du"es. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit Commi!ee

The Board of Directors of the Company has cons"tuted an Audit Commi!ee of the Board in terms of the requirements 

of Sec"on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. The Audit Commi!ee comprises of two 

Independent Non-Execu"ve Director and one Non-Execu"ve Director namely Shri B.L. Surana, Smt. Tara Purohit & Shri 

P.J. Bhide during the year under review.

The Commi!ee met 4 "mes during the year on 7th May, 2018, 7th August, 2018, 12th November, 2018 & 4th February, 

2019. The a!endance of the Members at the Audit Commi!ee Mee"ngs is as under :

Name of the Director Status No. of mee"ngs en"tled to a!end No. of mee"ngs a!ended

Shri B.L. Surana * Chairman 4 4

Smt. Tara Purohit Member 4 3

Shri P.J. Bhide Member 4 4

*ceased to be a member w.e.f. 18th March, 2019

Nomina"on & Remunera"on Commi!ee

The Board of Directors of the Company has cons"tuted a Nomina"on and Remunera"on Commi!ee of the Board in 

terms of the requirements of Sec"on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. The Nomina"on 

& Remunera"on Commi!ee comprises of two Independent Non-Execu"ve Directors and one Non-Execu"ve Director 

namely Shri B.L. Surana, Smt. Tara Purohit & Shri P.J. Bhide during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Commi!ee met twice on 7th May, 2018 & 12th November, 2018. The a!endance of 

the Members at the Nomina"on & Remunera"on Commi!ee Mee"ngs is as under :

Name of the Director Status No. of mee"ngs en"tled to a!end No. of mee"ngs a!ended

Shri B.L. Surana * Chairman 2 2

Smt. Tara Purohit Member 2 1

Shri P.J. Bhide Member 2 2

* ceased to be a member w.e.f. 18th March, 2019

Stakeholders Rela"onship Commi!ee

The Board of Directors of the Company has cons"tuted a Stakeholders Rela"onship Commi!ee of the Board in terms of 

the requirements of Sec"on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. The Stakeholders Rela"onship 

Commi!ee comprises of one Non-Execu"ve Director, one Independent Non-Execu"ve Director and one Whole"me 

Director namely, Shri P.J. Bhide, Shri B.L. Surana & Shri R.K. Gupta during the year under review.

During the year under review, 6 (Six) Stakeholders’ Rela"onship Commi!ee Mee"ng was held on 9th August, 2018, 

1st November, 2018, 15th November, 2018, 6th December, 2018, 20th December, 2018 & 10th January, 2019. The 

a!endance of the Members at the Stakeholders’ Rela"onship Commi!ee Mee"ngs is as under :
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Name of the Director Status No. of mee�ngs en�tled to a�end No. of mee�ngs a�ended

Shri P.J. Bhide Chairman 6 6

Shri B.L. Surana * Member 6 6

Shri R.K. Gupta Member 6 6

* ceased to be a member w.e.f. 18th March, 2019

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For maintaining the independence of the Board, and separate its func"ons and management, Company’s policy is to 

have an appropriate combina"on of Execu"ve and Independent Directors. As on March 31, 2019, the Board consists of 

5 members, of which, 4 are Non-Execu"ve Directors (NED) and 1 is Whole"me Director. The Board has 1 Independent 

Woman Director, 1 Promoter Non-Execu"ve Director, 2 Non-Execu"ve Director and 1 Whole"me Director.  The need for 

change in its composi"on and size are evaluated periodically. The Company pays remunera"on to non-execu"ve directors 

by way of si#ng fees. The remunera"on paid to the Directors and KMP is as per the terms laid out in the Nomina"on 

and Remunera"on Policy of the Company which is available at the website of the Company i.e. www.cochinmalabar.in

Category Name of Directors

Promoter Director

Non-Execu"ve Director

Shri Hemant Bangur

Execu�ve Director

Whole"me Director

Shri R.K. Gupta

Independent Non-Execu�ve Directors Smt. Tara Purohit

Non-Execu�ve Non-Independent Director Shri P.J. Bhide

Shri C.P. Sharma

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have carried out the performance 

evalua"on for the Board, Commi$ees of the Board, individual Directors of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

31st March, 2019.

The Board of Directors expressed their sa"sfac"on with the evalua"on process.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is having a Paid-up equity share capital not exceeding ` 10 crore and Networth not exceeding ` 25 crore 

and hence as per SEBI (LODR) Regula"ons, 2015, corporate governance requirements provided under Regula"ons 17 to 

27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regula"on (2) of Regula"on 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Lis"ng Regula"ons 

are not applicable to your Company.  

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accoun"ng Standards (“Ind AS”), read with 

the Companies (Indian Accoun"ng Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) & other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms that :

i) in the prepara"on of the annual accounts, the applicable Accoun"ng Standards have been followed and there has 

been no material departures; 

ii) the selected Accoun"ng Policies were applied consistently and the Directors made judgments and es"mates that 

are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2019 and of the losses of the Company for the year ended on that date;

iii) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accoun"ng records in accordance with 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven!ng and 

detec!ng fraud and other irregulari!es;

iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

v) the internal financial controls have been laid down and such internal financial controls are adequate and are 

opera!ng effec!vely; and

vi) the Company has adequate internal systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems are adequate and opera!ng effec!vely.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All the related party transac!ons are entered on arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially related party transac!ons made by the Company with promoters, 

directors or key managerial personnel etc. during the year which might have poten!al conflict with the interest of the 

Company at large. A statement of all related party transac!ons is placed before the Audit Commi%ee for approval. The 

details of the transac!ons with the related par!es are provided in the Company’s Financial Statement. Note No. 26. 

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT:

Statutory Auditors

The term of the Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s. Singhi & Co. Chartered Accountants, expires at the ensuing 

Annual General Mee!ng in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board has appointed M/s. JKVS & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registra!on No.318086E) as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company to hold the office from the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Mee!ng !ll the 

conclusion of the Annual General Mee!ng for the Financial Year 2023-24.

The Company has received a le%er from M/s. JKVS & Co, Chartered Accountants to the effect that their appointment, 

if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Sec!on 139 of the Act and that they are not disqualified for 

appointment.

There is no qualifica!on, reserva!on or adverse remark made by the Auditors in their report to the Standalone Financial 

Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019.

Secretarial Auditors

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mrs. Sweety Kapoor, Prac!cing Company Secretary to carry out 

secretarial audit for the financial year 2018-19 in terms of the provisions of Sec!on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rules made thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2018-19 in Form No. MR-3 is provided in 

Annexure - 1 forming part of this report. 

There is no qualifica!on, reserva!on or adverse remark made by the Secretarial Auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report 

for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019.

ANNUAL RETURN:

In accordance with the provisions of Sec!on 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 an extract of the Annual Return as 

required under Sec!on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder is provided in Annexure - 2 

forming part of this report. 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary mechanism to report concerns 

about unethical behavior or suspected fraud in viola!on of Company’s Code of Conduct or any other point of concern. 

The policy has been disclosed on the website of the Company and the weblink for the same is h%p://cochinmalabar.in/

whistle_blower.pdf

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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INTERNAL FINANICAL CONTROL:

For ensuring methodical and efficient conduct of its business, the Board has adopted policies and procedures. Thus, it 

ensures safeguarding of assets and resources of the Company, preven"on and deten"on of frauds and errors, accuracy 

and completeness of the accoun"ng records and "mely prepara"on of financial disclosures.

Your Board is of the opinion that the Internal Financial Control affec"ng the financial statement of your Company are 

adequate and opera"ng efficiently.

The Internal Audit of the Company is conducted by a Prac"cing Company Secretary. The findings of the Internal Audit 

and the Ac"on Taken Report on the Internal Audit are placed before the Audit Commi%ee which reviews the audit 

findings, steps taken and the adequacy of Internal Control System.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board periodically reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mi"gate the same through a 

properly defined frame work.

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

i) There were no material changes and commitments affec"ng the financial posi"on of the Company occurring 

between 31st March, 2019 and the date of this Report.

ii) There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

iii) There were no significant and material orders passed by regulator or courts or tribunals impac"ng the going concern 

status and Company’s opera"on in future. 

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a policy on preven"on of sexual harassment at the workplace. Your 

Company provides a safe and healthy work environment, there were no cases of sexual harassment reported during the 

year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) OF THE COMPANY:

Pursuant to Sec"on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 CSR provisions does not apply to your Company. Accordingly, your 

Company has not formed CSR Commi%ee 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards 

issued by The Ins"tute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Economic Review, Industry Structure & Development

At 7.3%, India outperformed China in the year and emerged as the fastest growing large economy. The key contributors 

to this growth include its robust private consump"on, the implementa"on of GST, an array of structural reforms and low 

food infla"on.

Opportuni!es, Threats and Outlook

India is projected to remain robust and grow at a rate of 7.1% in 2019, benefi*ng from lower oil prices, sustained growth 

in private consump"on and favourable monetary policy. Risk to forecast includes outcome of the general elec"on in May, 

2019, monsoons and slowdown in the global economy.

Opera!onal Review

The Company is developing its land assets in Goa based on which the going concern status of the Company is maintained.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

A separate paragraph on Internal Control System and their adequacy, risk management and discussion of financial 

performance have been provided in this report.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed and traded on BSE Ltd, Scrip Code : 508571 and lis"ng fees for the Financial 

Year 2018-2019 of BSE Ltd has been paid.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

None of the employees of the Company fall within the purview of the informa"on required under Sec"on 197 read with 

Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera"on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 during the Financial 

Year.

DISCLOSURE PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 ARE GIVEN BELOW:

1. The ra"o of the remunera"on of each director to the median remunera"on of the employees of the Company for 

2018-19 : 1:1.

2. The percentage increase in remunera"on of Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary if 

any, in the Financial Year 2018-19 : NIL.

3. The percentage increase in the median remunera"on of employees in the Financial year 2018-19 : NIL.

4. Number of permanent employees on the roll of the Company as on March 31, 2019 : 3.

5. Average percen"le increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 

last financial year and its comparison with the percen"le increase in the managerial remunera"on and jus"fica"on 

thereof and part out if there are any excep"onal circumstances for increase in the managerial remunera"on : NIL.

6. Affirma"on that remunera"on is as per remunera"on policy of the Company : Yes.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Your Company did not have any manufacturing ac"vity during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019 and as such 

informa"on in accordance with the provisions of clause (m) of Sub-sec"on (3) of Sec"on 134 of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not a$ached.

The Company does not have any Foreign Exchange inflow & outgo during the year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their apprecia"on for assistance and coopera"on received from the 

commercial banks and other authori"es. 

 On behalf of the Board

Place:  Kolkata (C.P. Sharma) (Hemant Bangur)

Date : 25th April, 2019 Director Director

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members, 

THE COCHIN MALABAR ESTATES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

21, Strand Road

Kolkata – 700 001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 has complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 

for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of: 

(i)     The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii)    The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii)   The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of Reg. 55A; 

(iv)   Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (not applicable to the 

company during the audit period)

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’):- 

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

(not applicable to the company during the audit period)

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based employee benefit) Regulations, 2014; (not applicable 

to the company during the audit period)

 (e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (not 

applicable to the company during the audit period)

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

Annexure - 1

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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 (g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and (not applicable 

to the company during the audit period)

 (h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (not applicable to the 

company during the audit period)

(vi) The Company presently has no manufacturing activities as confirmed by the Management of the Company and as 

such there is no specific law applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/Regulations of the following:  

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs.

(ii)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

I further confirm that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct & Indirect Laws by the Company has not 

been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated 

professionals.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. The Company has appointed Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. 12/11/2018 in terms of the provisions 

of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

I further report that 

A. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. 

B.  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having a major bearing on the 

company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to 

above. 

I further report that during the audit period there were no instances of :

• Public/Rights/Preferential Issue of Shares/Debentures/Sweat Equity, etc.

• Redemption/Buy Back of Securities

• Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance of Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013

• Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction, etc.

• Foreign Technical Collaboration 

Sweety Kapoor

Practicing Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata FCS No. : 6410

Date : 25/04/2019 C P No. : 5738

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and forms an integral part of this report.

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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To,

The Members

The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited 

21, Strand Road

Kolkata – 700 001

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1) Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2)  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 

facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable 

basis for my opinion.

3)  I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4)  Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.

5)  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6)  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viabillity of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Sweety Kapoor

Practicing Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata FCS No. : 6410

Date : 25/04/2019 C P No. : 5738

Annexure - A

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)



Statutory Reports Financial Section

Annual Report 2018-19 11

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN : L01132WB1991PLC152586

ii) Registration Date : 14/03/1930

iii) Name of the Company : The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited

iv Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company limited by shares

v) Address of the Registered office and contact 

details

: 21, Strand Road,  Kolkata – 700 001

(033) 2230-9601

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No : Yes, at BSE Limited

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

: Maheshwari Datamatics Private Ltd. 

23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor,

Kolkata – 700 001

Phone : (033) 2243-5029/5809

Fax No. : :(033) 2248-4787

E-mail : mdpldc@yahoo.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of 

main products /services

NIC Code of the Product /service % to total turnover of the Company

1 NIL

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

 The Company does not have any Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies as on 31st March, 2019.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year (1st April, 2018)

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year (31st March, 2019)

%  
Change
during

the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

1. Indian

a) Individual / HUF 124615 – 124615 7.0328 124615 – 124615 7.0328 0.0000

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt

d) Bodies Corp. 986744 – 986744 55.6882 986744 – 986744 55.6882 0.0000

e) Banks / FI

f) Any Other

Sub-total   (A) (1): 1111359 – 1111359 62.7210 1111359 – 1111359 62.7210 0.0000

Annexure - 2

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)



The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited12

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year (1st April, 2018)

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year (31st March, 2019)

%  
Change
during

the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

2. Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals

b) Other – Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other

Sub-total   (A) (2):-

Total shareholding of Promoter 

(A)=(A)(1)+(A) (2)

1111359 – 1111359 62.7210 1111359 – 1111359 62.7210 0.0000

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI - 5724 5724 0.3230 - 5724 5724 0.3230 0.0000

c) Central Govt.

d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture Capital  Funds

f) Insurance Companies 321304 – 321304 18.1332 321304 – 321304 18.1332 0.0000

g) FIIs

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):- 321304 5724 327028 18.4562 321304 5724 327028 18.4562 0.0000

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 1941 8954 10895 0.6149 1351 8954 10305 0.5816 (0.0333)

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders 

holding  nominal share 

capital upto ` 1 lakh

114414 160020 274434 15.4881 120249 153173 273422 15.4310 (0.0571)

ii) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital in excess of ` 1 lakh

41900 – 41900 2.3647 44083 – 44083 2.4879 0.1232

c) Others

i) Custodian of Enemy Property 480 – 480 0.0271 480 – 480 0.0271 0.0000

ii) Clearing Member 799 – 799 0.0451 200 – 200 0.0113 (0.0338)

iii) Non Resident Individual 320 4693 5013 0.2829 338 4693 5031 0.2839 0.0010

Sub-total (B)(2) :- 159854 173667 333521 18.8228 166701 166820 333521 18.8228 0.0000

Total Public Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

481158 179391 660549 37.2789 488005 172544 660549 37.2790 0.0000

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

Promoter and Promoter Group

Public

Grand Total (A+B+C) 1592517 179391 1771908 100.000 1599364 172544 1771908 100.000 -

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters (including Promoter Group)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name
Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year
Shareholding at the end 

of the year %
change in 

shareholding
during the 

year

No. of
Shares

% of
total

Shares
of the

company

% of
Shares

Pledged /
encumbered 

to total shares

No. of
Shares

% of
total

Shares
of the

company

% of
Shares

Pledged /
encumbered 

to total shares

1 Hemant Bangur 29719 1.6772 – 29719 1.6772 – –

2 Pushpa Devi Bangur 1000 0.0564 – 1000 0.0564 – –

3 Hemant Kumar Bangur HUF 92396 5.2145 – 92396 5.2145 – –

4 Vinita Bangur 500 0.0282 – 500 0.0282 – –

5 Pranov Bangur 500 0.0282 – 500 0.0282 – –

6 Gopal Das Bangur HUF 500 0.0282 – 500 0.0282 – –

7 Joonktollee Tea & Industries Ltd 437294 24.6793 – 437294 24.6793 – –

8 The Oriental Company Ltd. 323447 18.2542 – 323447 18.2542 – –

9 Madhav Trading Corporation Ltd. 127064 7.1710 – 127064 7.1710 – –

10 Gloster Ltd. 98939 5.5838 – 98939 5.5838 – –

Total 1111359 62.7210 – 1111359 62.7210 – –

(iii) Change in Promoters (including Promoter Group) Shareholding 

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

NO CHANGE IN THE PROMOTERS SHAREHOLDING DURING THE YEAR

(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) : 

Sl.

No.

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumula!ve Shareholding

during the year

No. of

shares

% of total shares of 

the company

No. of

shares

% of total shares of 

the company

1 Life Insurance Corpora!on of India

a) At the Beginning of the Year 304442 17.1816

b) Changes during the Year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 304442 17.1816

2 United India Insurance Company Ltd.

a) At the Beginning of the Year 16862 0.9516

b) Changes during the year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 16862 0.9516

3 Hitesh Ramji Javeri

a) At the Beginning of the Year 21400 1.2077 21400 1.2077

b) Changes during the year

As on 19/10/2018 – Buy 33 0.0019 21433 1.2096

As on 23/11/2018 – Buy 150 0.0085 21583 1.2181

c) At the end of the Year 21583 1.2181

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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Sl.

No.

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumula�ve Shareholding

during the year

No. of

shares

% of total shares of 

the company

No. of

shares

% of total shares of 

the company

4 Harsha Hitesh Javeri

a) At the Beginning of the Year 20500 1.1569 20500 1.1569

b) Changes during the year

As on 08/06/2018 – Buy 2000 0.1129 22500 1.2698

c) At the end of the Year 22500 1.2698

5 Dilnavaz S Variava

a) At the Beginning of the Year 7600 0.4289 – –

b) Changes during the Year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 7600 0.4289

6 Naira J Jejeebhoy

a) At the Beginning of the Year 7550 0.4261 – –

b) Changes during the Year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 7550 0.4261

7 Firdaus S Variava

a) At the Beginning of the Year 7381 0.4166 – –

b) Changes during the Year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 7381 0.4166

8 Navratan Damani

a) At the Beginning of the Year 5000 0.2822 – –

b) Changes during the Year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 5000 0.2822

9 Navratan Damani (HUF)

a) At the Beginning of the Year 5000 0.2822

b) Changes during the year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 5000 0.2822

10 Sarladevi Damani

a) At the Beginning of the Year 5000 0.2822

b) Changes during the year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 5000 0.2822

11 Pallavi G Damani

a) At the Beginning of the Year 5000 0.2822

b) Changes during the year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 5000 0.2822

12 Savitri Bha!er

a) At the Beginning of the Year 7732 0.4364

b) Changes during the year

As on 08/06/2018 – Sell (3500) (0.1975) 4232 0.2388

c) At the end of the Year 4232 0.2388

• Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 

allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc) 

NOTE : The above informa!on is based on the weekly beneficiary posi!on received from Depositories.

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 

No.

Name of the Director & Key Managerial Personnel Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumula!ve Shareholding

during the year

No. of

shares

% of total shares of 

the company

No. of

shares

% of total shares

of the company

1 Mr. Hemant Bangur (Director) 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 29719 1.6772

b) Changes during the Year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 29719 1.6772

2 Mr. C.P. Sharma (Director) 

a) At the Beginning of the Year 100 0.0056

b) Changes during the Year NO CHANGE DURING THE YEAR

c) At the end of the Year 100 0.0056

V. INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Amount in `)

Secured Loans

Excluding 

deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount – 1,50,00,000 – 1,50,00,000

ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –

iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –

Total (i+ii+iii) – 1,50,00,000 – 1,50,00,000

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

• Addition –    45,00,000 –    45,00,000

• Reduction – – – –

Net Change –    45,00,000 –    45,00,000

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount – 1,95,00,000 – 1,95,00,000

ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –

iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –

Total (i+ii+iii) – 1,95,00,000 – 1,95,00,000
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Amount in `)

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Wholetime Director Total
Amount

Shri R. K. Gupta

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income–tax Act, 1961

12,000 12,000

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income–tax Act, 1961 – –

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income tax 

Act, 1961

– –

2. Stock Option – –

3. Sweat Equity – –

4. Commission – –

–  as % of profit – –

–  others – –

5. Others – –

Total (A) 12,000 12,000

Ceiling as per the Act Minimum remuneration paid as per approval accorded by 

Shareholders in their meeting held on 22.09.2015 in accordance 

with Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration to other directors: (Amount in `)

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total

Amount

 (In Rupees)

- Mr. B. L. Surana* Mrs. Tara Purohit

Independent Directors -

• Fee for attending board / committee meetings - 32,000 16,000 48,000

• Commission - - - -

• Others - - - -

Total (1) 32,000 16,000 48,000

Other Non–Executive Directors Mr. P. J. Bhide Mr. C. P. Sharma Mr. Hemant Bangur

• Fee for attending board / committee meetings 32,000 12,000 8,000 52,000

• Commission - - - -

• Others - - - -

Total (2) 32,000 12,000 8,000 52,000

Total (B)=(1+2) 1,00,000

Total Managerial Remuneration 1,12,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act The Independent & Other Non-Executive Directors have only been paid fees 

for attending meeting which are not includible in the ceiling as per provisions 

of Section 197(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

* upto 18th March, 2019
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD / Manager /WTD: (Amount in `)

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CFO

Mr. A. K. Ruia

Company Secretary
Mr. M. Kandoi*

Total

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in    

section 17(1)   of   the  Income-tax Act, 

1961

12,000 25,000 37,000

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961

– – –

(c) Profits  in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income–tax Act, 1961

— — —

2. Stock Option — — —

3. Sweat Equity — — —

4. Commission — — —

– as % of profit — — —

 – others — — —

5. Others — — —

Total 12,000 25,000 37,000

* w.e.f. 12th November, 2018

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

 There was no penalty/punishment/compounding fee imposed on the Company, its Directors or other Officers of 

the Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended 31st March, 2019. 
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To the Members of

The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements 

of The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 

at March 31st 2019, the Statement of Profi t and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow 

Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 

signifi cant accoun" ng policies and other explanatory 

informa" on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa" on and 

according to the explana" ons given to us, the aforesaid 

fi nancial statements give the informa" on required by 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner 

so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the Indian Accoun" ng Standards prescribed under 

sec" on 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accoun" ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 

AS”) and other accoun" ng principles generally accepted 

in India, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at March 

31, 2019, and its loss, total comprehensive income, the 

changes in equity and its cash fl ows for the year ended 

on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone fi nancial 

statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi" ng 

specifi ed under sec" on 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 

responsibili" es under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of 

the Financial Statements sec" on of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 

of Ethics issued by the Ins" tute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the standalone fi nancial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 

made there under, and we have fulfi lled our other ethical 

responsibili" es in accordance with these requirements 

and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence obtained by us is suffi  cient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the fi nancial 

statements.

Material uncertainty related to going concern 

We draw a& en" on to Note no. 31 to the Ind As Financial 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Statement that indicates the fact that the net worth of 

the company is fully eroded. The condi" on may indicate 

the existence of an uncertainty about the company’s 

ability to con" nue as a going concern. However, the 

fi nancial statements of the company have been prepared 

on a going concern basis based on the reason stated in 

the above note. The appropriateness of the said basis is 

dependent on the company’s ability to repay its obliga" ons 

through u" liza" on of its fi xed assets and resuming normal 

opera" on. Our opinion is not modifi ed in respect of this 

ma& er.

Key Audit Ma! ers

Key audit ma&ers are those ma&ers that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. 

These ma&ers were addressed in the context of our audit 

of the Standalone financial statements as a whole, and 

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these ma&ers. We have determined 

the ma&ers described below as Key audit ma&ers and for 

each ma&er, our descrip"on of how our audit addressed 

the ma&er is provided in that context.

Key audit ma! ers How our audit addressed 

the key audit ma! er

The net worth of the 

company has been fully 

eroded. The availability of 

suffi  cient funds and the 

tes" ng of whether the 

company will be able to 

resume normal opera" on 

and con" nue mee" ng its 

obliga" ons are important 

for the going concern 

assump" on and, as such, 

are signifi cant aspects of 

our audit. This test or 

assessment is largely based 

on the expecta" ons of and 

the es" mates made by 

management. The 

expecta" ons and es" mates 

can be infl uenced by 

subjec" ve elements such 

as es" mated future cash 

fl ows, forecasted results 

and margins from 

opera" ons. 

• Review of basis of 

prepara" on of fi nancial 

statements as a going 

concern.

• Review of the 

assump" ons and 

forecasts made by 

management for 

assessing the 

company's ability to 

con" nue the normal 

opera" on by u" lizing 

the exis" ng fi xed 

assets.

• For notes on the going 

concern assump" on, 

see the going concern 

principle as referred on 

note no. 31 of the 

fi nancial statements.



Statutory Reports Financial Section

Annual Report 2018-19 19

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)

Informa!on other than the Financial Statements and 

Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 

the prepara! on of the other informa! on. The other 

informa! on comprises the informa! on included in the 

Board’s Report including annexure to the Board’s Report 

& other Shareholder’s Informa! on, but does not include 

the fi nancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the fi nancial statements does not cover 

the other informa! on and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connec! on with our audit of the fi nancial statements, 

our responsibility is to read the other informa! on and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other informa! on is 

materially inconsistent with the fi nancial statements 

or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other informa! on; we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

ma# ers stated in sec! on 134(5) of the Act with respect 

to the prepara! on of these fi nancial statements that give 

a true and fair view of the fi nancial posi! on, fi nancial 

performance including other comprehensive income, cash 

fl ows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 

with the accoun! ng principles generally accepted in 

India, including the Indian Accoun! ng  Standards (Ind AS) 

specifi ed under sec! on 133 of the Act read with (Indian 

Accoun! ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accoun! ng records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preven! ng and detec! ng frauds and other irregulari! es; 

selec! on and applica! on of appropriate accoun! ng 

policies; making judgments and es! mates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementa! on 

and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls, 

that were opera! ng eff ec! vely for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness of the accoun! ng records, relevant to 

the prepara! on and presenta! on of the Ind AS fi nancial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the fi nancial statements, management 

is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

con! nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

ma# ers related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accoun! ng unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera! ons, 

or has no realis! c alterna! ve but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the Company’s fi nancial repor! ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili! es for the Audit of the Ind AS 

Financial Statements

Our objec! ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the fi nancial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to infl uence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

fi nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional 

skep! cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden! fy and assess the risks of material misstatement 

of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detec! ng a material 

misstatement resul! ng from fraud is higher than for 

one resul! ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, inten! onal omissions, misrepresenta! ons, or 

the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 

to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec! on 

143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the Company has adequate internal fi nancial controls 

system in place and the opera! ng eff ec! veness of 

such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun! ng policies 

used and the reasonableness of accoun! ng es! mates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 

use of the going concern basis of accoun! ng and, 
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based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 

a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

condi! ons that may cast signifi cant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to con! nue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

are required to draw a# en! on in our auditor’s report 

to the related disclosures in the fi nancial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Refer to paragraph “material uncertainty 

related to going concern” above in respect to our 

repor! ng in respect to going concern appropriateness. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or condi! ons may cause the 

Company to cease to con! nue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presenta! on, structure and 

content of the Ind AS fi nancial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS fi nancial 

statements represent the underlying transac! ons and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presenta! on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

fi nancial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the fi nancial statements 

may be infl uenced. We consider quan! ta! ve materiality 

and qualita! ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our 

audit work and in evalua! ng the results of our work; and 

(ii) to evaluate the eff ect of any iden! fi ed misstatements 

in the fi nancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 

regarding, among other ma# ers, the planned scope and 

! ming of the audit and signifi cant audit fi ndings, including 

any signifi cant defi ciencies in internal control that we 

iden! fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 

a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all rela! onships and other 

ma# ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma# ers communicated with those charged 

with governance, we determine those ma# ers that were 

of most signifi cance in the audit of the Ind AS fi nancial 

statements for the fi nancial year ended March 31, 2019 

and are therefore the key audit ma# ers. We describe 

these ma# ers in our auditor’s report unless law or 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)

regula! on precludes public disclosure about the ma# er 

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 

that a ma# er should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefi ts of such communica! on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-sec! on (11) of 

sec! on 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” 

a statement on the ma# ers specifi ed in paragraphs 3 

and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Sec! on 143(3) of the Act, we report 

that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informa! on 

and explana! ons which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 

required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examina! on of those 

books;

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profi t 

and Loss including the Statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement 

and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of 

account;

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS fi nancial 

statements comply with the Accoun! ng Standards 

specifi ed under Sec! on 133 of the Act, read with 

Companies (Indian Accoun! ng Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended from ! me to ! me;

 (e) On the basis of the wri# en representa! ons 

received from the directors as on  March 31, 2019 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 

the directors is disqualifi ed as on March 31, 2019 

from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Sec! on 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 

fi nancial controls over fi nancial repor! ng of the 

Company with reference to these Ind AS fi nancial 

statements and the opera! ng eff ec! veness of 
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such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B” to this report;

 (g) In our opinion and to the best of our informa! on 

and according to the explana! on given to us, 

the remunera! on paid by the company to its 

directors during the year is in accordance with 

the provisions of sec! on 197 of the Act.

 (h) With respect to the other ma" ers to be included 

in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 

the best of our informa! on and according to the 

explana! ons given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 

pending li! ga! ons on its fi nancial posi! on in 

its Ind AS fi nancial statements – Refer Note 

24.1 to the fi nancial statements; 

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 

contracts including deriva! ve contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable 

losses;

  iii. There were no amounts which were required 

to be transferred to the Investor Educa! on 

and Protec! on Fund by the Company.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm‘s Registration No. 302049E

Gopal Jain

Place: Kolkata Partner

Date: 25th April, 2019 Membership No. 059147

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on 

Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our 

Report to the members of  The Cochin Malabar Estates 

And Industries Limited of even date)

I.  In respect of Company’s fi xed assets:

 (a) The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full par" culars, including quan" ta" ve 

details and situa" on of fi xed assets.

 (b) As explained to us, fi xed Assets of the Company 

were physically verifi ed during the year by the 

management at reasonable intervals. According 

to the informa" on and explana" ons given to us 

no material discrepancies were no" ced except for 

Rubber wood factory where physical verifi ca" on 

could not be taken place due to closure of 

factory. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 

verifi ca" on is reasonable having regards to the 

size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

 (c) According to the informa" on and explana" ons 

given to us and on the basis of our examina" on 

of the records of the Company, the " tle deeds of 

immovable proper" es are held in the name of 

the Company except for the land situated in Goa 

amoun" ng to Rs. 27.65 Lacs, muta" on of which is 

in the process of comple" on.

II.  No inventories were held by the company at the close 

of the year and hence the requirements of clause (ii) 

of the Order are not applicable.

III.  The Company has not granted any loan to par" es 

covered in the register maintained under sec" on 189 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of 

the Order is not applicable.

IV.  In our opinion and according to the informa" on 

and explana" ons given to us, the Company has not 

made any loans or investments during the year. The 

Company has neither issued any guarantee nor has 

provided any security on behalf of any party.

V.  The Company has not accepted any deposits within 

the meaning of Sec" ons 73 to 76 of the Companies 

Act 2013 and the rules framed there under.

VI.  As the Rubber Wood factory are not under opera" on, 

Cost records and books of accounts prescribed by the 

Government of India under sub-sec" on (1) of Sec" on 

148 of  the Act were not maintained as the need for 

maintaining the Cost records did not arise during the 

year. 

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

VII.  According to the informa" on and explana" ons given 

to us and on the basis of our examina" on of the 

records of the Company, 

 (a) the Company is generally been regular in 

deposi" ng the undisputed statutory dues 

including provident fund, employees’ state 

insurance, income tax, Goods and Service Tax, 

cess and other material statutory dues during 

the year by the Company with the appropriate 

authori" es and no such dues were in arrears, as 

at 31st March, 2019 for a period of more than six 

months from the date they became payable 

 (b) According to the informa" on and explana" ons 

given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, the dues of income tax, sales tax, 

wealth tax, Goods and Service tax and cess as at 

31st March, 2019 which have not been deposited 

on account of dispute and the forum where the 

disputes are pending are as under:

Name of the  

Statute

Nature of 

Dues

Amount 

(`)

Period to which 

the amount 

relates

Forum where 

dispute is 

pending

Central Sales 

Tax , 1956

CST Levy on 

Rubber Cess

7,36,458 1988-89 to 

1992-93

Supreme Court 

of India

Income Tax 

Act, 1961

Demand U/S 

156

50,67,096 2015-16 Commissioner 

of Income tax 

(Appeals)

VIII. Based on our audit procedures and on the basis 

of informa" on and explana" ons given by the 

management, the Company did not have any 

outstanding debentures or dues to the fi nancial 

ins" tu" ons/Bank during the year. 

IX.  According to the informa" on and explana" ons 

given to us by the management, the Company did 

not raise any money by way of Ini" al public off er or 

further public off er (including debt instruments), 

however short term loans raised during the year have 

been u" lized for the purpose for which they were 

raised.

X.  According to the informa" on and explana" ons given 

to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by 

its offi  cers or employees has been no" ced or reported 

during the course of our audit. 

XI.  According to the informa" on and explana" ons given 

to us and based on our examina" on of the records 

of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided 

for managerial remunera" on in accordance with the 
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 

sec! on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

XII. In our opinion and according to the informa! on and 

explana! ons given to us, the Company is not a nidhi 

company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is 

not applicable.

XIII. According to the informa! on and explana! ons given 

to us and based on our examina! on of the records 

of the Company, transac! ons with the related par! es 

are in compliance with sec! ons 177 and 188 of the 

Act where applicable and details of such transac! ons 

have been disclosed in the fi nancial statements as 

required by the applicable accoun! ng standards.

XIV. According to the informa! on and explana! ons given 

to us and based on our examina! on of the records 

of the Company, the Company has not made any 

preferen! al allotment or private placement of shares 

or fully or partly conver! ble debentures during the 

year.

XV. According to the informa! on and explana! ons given 

to us and based on our examina! on of the records of 

the Company, the Company has not entered into non-

cash transac! ons with directors or persons connected 

with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is 

not applicable.  

XVI. The Company is not required to be registered under 

sec!on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm‘s Registration No. 302049E

Gopal Jain

Place: Kolkata Partner

Date: 25th April, 2019 Membership No. 059147
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under “Report on Other 

Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our 

Report to the members of The Cochin Malabar Estates 

And Industries Limited of even date)

We have audited the internal fi nancial controls over 

fi nancial repor" ng of The Cochin Malabar Estates And 

Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2019 

in conjunc" on with our audit of the fi nancial statements 

of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL 

FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal fi nancial controls based on the 

internal control over fi nancial repor" ng criteria established 

by the Company considering the essen" al components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor" ng issued 

by the Ins" tute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 

These responsibili" es include the design, implementa" on 

and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls 

that were opera" ng eff ec" vely for ensuring the orderly 

and effi  cient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 

the preven" on and detec" on of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accoun" ng records, and 

the " mely prepara" on of reliable fi nancial informa" on, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Company’s internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial 

repor" ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Repor" ng (the “Guidance 

Note”) and the Standards on Audi" ng, issued by ICAI and 

deemed to be prescribed under sec" on 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal fi nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of 

Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAI. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial repor" ng was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated 

eff ec" vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal fi nancial 

controls system over fi nancial repor" ng and their 

opera" ng eff ec" veness. Our audit of internal fi nancial 

controls over fi nancial repor" ng included obtaining 

an understanding of internal fi nancial controls over 

fi nancial repor" ng, assessing the risk that a material 

weakness exists, and tes" ng and evalua" ng the design 

and opera" ng eff ec" veness of internal control based on 

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal fi nancial controls 

system over fi nancial repor" ng.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company’s internal fi nancial control over fi nancial 

repor" ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial repor" ng 

and the prepara" on of fi nancial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accoun" ng principles. A company’s internal fi nancial 

control over fi nancial repor" ng includes those policies 

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

refl ect the transac" ons and disposi" ons of the assets 

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 

that transac" ons are recorded as necessary to permit 

prepara" on of fi nancial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accoun" ng principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 

only in accordance with authoriza" ons of management 

and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding preven" on or " mely detec" on 

of unauthorized acquisi" on, use, or disposi" on of the 

company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the 

fi nancial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 

CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limita" ons of internal fi nancial 

controls over fi nancial repor" ng, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 

and not be detected. Also, projec" ons of any evalua" on 

of the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial repor" ng 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

fi nancial control over fi nancial repor" ng may become 

inadequate because of changes in condi" ons, or that the 

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal fi nancial controls system over 

fi nancial repor" ng and such internal fi nancial controls 

over fi nancial repor" ng were opera" ng eff ec" vely as at 31 

March 2019, based on the internal control over fi nancial 

repor" ng criteria established by the Company considering 

the essen" al components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Repor" ng issued by ICAI.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants 

Firm‘s Registration No. 302049E

Gopal Jain

Place: Kolkata Partner

Date: 25th April, 2019 Membership No. 059147

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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(Amount in `)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019

Note 

No.

 As at

31st March, 2019 

 As at

31st March, 2018

ASSETS

1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

a Property, Plant and Equipment 5  51,31,737 50,82,454

b Capital Work in Progress  11,80,000  63,11,737 

c Non-Current Tax Assets 6 15,40,907  15,38,709 

d Other Non-Current Assets 7  56,448  15,97,355  56,448  15,95,157 

2 CURRENT ASSETS

a Financial Assets

i. Cash and Cash Equivalents 8  6,02,994  2,50,853 

ii. Bank balances other than Note i above 9  -    9,10,000 

iii. Other Financial Assets 10  -    6,762 

b Other Current Assets 11  4,44,500  10,47,494  5,37,000  17,04,615 

Total Assets  89,56,586  83,82,226 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 EQUITY

a Equity Share Capital 12  1,77,19,080  1,77,19,080 

b Other Equity 13  (2,83,64,269)  (1,06,45,189)  (2,44,15,030)  (66,95,950)

LIABILITIES

2 CURRENT LIABILITIES

a Financial Liabili!es

i. Borrowings 14  1,95,00,000  1,50,00,000 

ii. Trade Payables 15

Total outstanding dues of creditors to micro enterprises and 

small enterprises

 -    -   

Total outstanding dues of creditor to other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises

 93,150  71,551 

iii. Other Financial Liabili!es 16  -    -   

b Other Current Liabili!es 17  8,625  1,96,01,775  6,625  1,50,78,176 

Total Equity and Liabili!es  89,56,586  83,82,226 

Basis of prepara!on and presenta!on of Financial Statement 2

Significant Accoun!ng Policies 3

Significant Judgements & Key Es!mates 4

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For and on behalf of

SINGHI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 302049E

Gopal Jain 

Partner 

Membership No. 059147

Place: Kolkata

Dated : 25th April, 2019 

Hemant Bangur

Director 

(DIN : 00040903)

C. P. Sharma

Director 

(DIN : 00258646)

R. K. Gupta

Wholetime Director 

(DIN : 06701619)

Arun Kumar Ruia

Chief Financial Officer

M. Kandoi

Company Secretary
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Note 

No.

For the year ended 

31st March, 2019

For the year ended 

31st March, 2018

INCOME

Other Income 18  21,468  63,914 

Total Income  21,468  63,914 

EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expense 19  49,000  24,000 

Finance Costs 20  19,68,492  14,48,268 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 21  28,217  30,268 

Other Expenses 22  19,24,998  14,73,891 

Total Expenses  39,70,707  29,76,427 

Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax  (39,49,239)  (29,12,513)

Exceptional Items  -    -   

Profit before Tax   (39,49,239)  (29,12,513)

Tax Expense:

Current Tax  -    -   

Deferred Tax  -    -   

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (39,49,239)  (29,12,513)

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  -    -   

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  -    -   

Total Other Comprehensive Income  -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (comprising Profit/(Loss) 

and other comprehensive income for the period

 (39,49,239)  (29,12,513)

Earnings Per Share 23  (2.23)  (1.64)

Basis of prepara!on and presenta!on of Financial Statement 2

Significant Accoun!ng Policies 3

Significant Judgements & Key Es!mates 4

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

(Amount in `)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

As per our Report annexed For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For and on behalf of

SINGHI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 302049E

Gopal Jain 

Partner 

Membership No. 059147

Place: Kolkata

Dated : 25th April, 2019 

Hemant Bangur

Director 

(DIN : 00040903)

C. P. Sharma

Director 

(DIN : 00258646)

R. K. Gupta

Wholetime Director 

(DIN : 06701619)

Arun Kumar Ruia

Chief Financial Officer

M. Kandoi

Company Secretary
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(Amount in `)

a) Equity Share Capital

Balance as at 31st March 2018  1,77,19,080 

Add/(Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year  -   

Balance as at 31st March 2019  1,77,19,080 

b) Other Equity

Par!culars Reserve & Surplus Total

Capital 

Redemp!on 

Reserve

Retained

Earnings 

Balance as at 31st March, 2017  1,13,300  (2,16,15,817)  (2,15,02,517)

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (29,12,513) (29,12,513) 

Other Comprehensive Income  -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  1,13,300  (2,45,28,330)  (2,44,15,030)

Balance as at 31st March, 2018  1,13,300  (2,45,28,330)  (2,44,15,030)

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (39,49,239) (39,49,239) 

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    (39,49,239)  (39,49,239)

Balance as at 31st March, 2019  1,13,300  (2,84,77,569)  (2,83,64,269)

 The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

As per our Report annexed For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For and on behalf of

SINGHI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 302049E

Gopal Jain 

Partner 

Membership No. 059147

Place: Kolkata

Dated : 25th April, 2019 

Hemant Bangur

Director 

(DIN : 00040903)

C. P. Sharma

Director 

(DIN : 00258646)

R. K. Gupta

Wholetime Director 

(DIN : 06701619)

Arun Kumar Ruia

Chief Financial Officer

M. Kandoi

Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

(Amount in `)

2018-2019 2017-2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) After Extraordinary Item & Before Tax  (39,49,239)  (29,12,513)

Adjustments For:

Depreciation & Amortisation  28,217  30,268 

Finance Cost  19,68,492  14,48,268 

Interest Income  (21,468)  (34,530)

Bad Debts & Advances written off  16,244  -   

Operating Profit/(Loss) Before Working Capital Changes  (19,57,754)  (14,68,507)

Adjustments For:

(Increase)/Decrease In Loans, Other Financial Assets & Other Assets  92,500  (1,37,000)

Increase/(Decrease) In Trade Payables & Other Liability  23,599  (23,15,540)

Cash Generated From  Operations  (18,41,656)  (39,21,047)

Less : Direct Taxes  2,198  12,60,889 

Net Cash From Operating Activities  (18,43,853)  (51,81,936)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 

including CWIP / Capital Advances  (12,57,500)  -   

Interest Received  21,986  34,012 

Deposit with Banks  9,00,000  (9,10,000)

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities  (3,35,514)  (8,75,988)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Short Term Borrowings (Net)  45,00,000  65,00,000 

Interest Paid  (19,68,492)  (14,48,268)

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities  25,31,508  50,51,732 

Net Change In Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  3,52,141     (10,06,192)

Cash And Cash Equivalents As On 31-03-2019  6,02,994  2,50,853 

Less: Cash And Cash Equivalents As On 31-03-2018  2,50,853  12,57,045 

 3,52,141  (10,06,192)

Notes : 
a) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement 

of Cash Flows’.    
b) Figures for the previous year have been re-grouped wherever considered necessary.    
c) The Notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.   

d) Cash and cash equivalent consists of :   

Particulars  2018-2019  2017-2018

Cash on hand  4,376  7,896 

Bank Balance  5,98,618  2,42,957 

TOTAL  6,02,994  2,50,853 

Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statement 2
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Significant Judgements & Key Estimates 4

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our Report annexed For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For and on behalf of

SINGHI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 302049E

Gopal Jain 

Partner 

Membership No. 059147

Place: Kolkata

Dated : 25th April, 2019   

Hemant Bangur

Director 

(DIN : 00040903)

C. P. Sharma

Director 

(DIN : 00258646)

R. K. Gupta

Wholetime Director 

(DIN : 06701619)

Arun Kumar Ruia

Chief Financial Officer

M. Kandoi

Company Secretary
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1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

 The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited (“The Company”) is a public limited company domiciled 

and incorporated in India under the Indian Companies Act 1913 and has its lis! ng on the BSE Limited. The 

registered offi  ce of the Company is situated at 21, Strand Road, Kolkata, West Bengal. The Company’s 

Rubberwood factory has not been in opera! on pursuant to no! ce received from the Deputy Conservator of 

Forests (Protec! on), Trivandrum.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1. Basis of prepara! on

 The fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with and in compliance, in all material aspects with Indian 

Accoun! ng Standards (Ind AS) no! fi ed under Sec! on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read along 

with Companies (Indian Accoun! ng Standards) Rules, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The presenta! on of the Financial Statements is based on Ind AS Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

fi nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 has been approved by the Board of 

Directors in their mee! ng held on 25th April, 2019.

2.2. Basis of Measurement

 The fi nancial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost 

conven! on, unless otherwise stated. All assets and liabili! es are classifi ed into current and non-current 

generally based on the criteria of realisa! on/se$ lement within a twelve month period from the balance sheet 

date.

2.3. Func! onal and Presenta! on Currency

 The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the func! onal currency of the 

Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All fi nancial 

informa! on presented in INR has been rounded off  to the nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule 

III, unless otherwise stated.

2.4. Use of Es! mates and Judgements

 The prepara! on of fi nancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires judgements, es! mates and 

assump! ons to be made that aff ect the reported amount of assets and liabili! es, disclosure of con! ngent 

liabili! es on the date of the fi nancial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 

the repor! ng period. Diff erence between the actual results and es! mates are recognized in the period in 

which the results are known / materialized.

2.5. Presenta! on of Financial Statements

 The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profi t and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed 

in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared 

and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash fl ows”. The disclosure requirements 

with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profi t and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 

III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the fi nancial statements along with the other 

notes required to be disclosed under the no! fi ed Accoun! ng Standards and the SEBI (Lis! ng Obliga! ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula! ons, 2015 (as amended).

2.6. Opera! ng Cycle for current and non-current classifi ca! on

 All assets and liabili! es have been classifi ed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal opera! ng 

cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1. The Company has 

ascertained its opera! ng cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classifi ca! on of 

assets and liabili! es. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019
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 An asset is classifi ed as current when it is:

 Ø Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal opera" ng cycle;

 Ø Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

 Ø Expected to be realized within twelve months a# er the repor" ng period; or

 Ø Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to se$ le a liability for at least 

twelve months a# er the repor" ng period.

 All the other assets are classifi ed as non-current.

 A liability is current when:

 Ø It is expected to be se$ led in normal opera" ng cycle;

 Ø It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

 Ø It is due to be se$ led within twelve months a# er the repor" ng period; or

 Ø There is no uncondi" onal right to defer the se$ lement of the liability for at least twelve months a# er the 

repor" ng period.

 The Company classifi es all other liabili" es as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabili" es are classifi ed as 

non-current assets and liabili" es respec" vely.

2.7. Measurement of Fair Values

 A number of the Company’s accoun" ng policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 

both fi nancial and non-fi nancial assets and liabili" es.

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transac" on between market par" cipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 

the presump" on that the transac" on to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

 Ø In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 Ø In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset 

or a liability is measured using the assump" ons that market par" cipants would use when pricing the asset or 

liability, assuming that market par" cipants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of 

a non-fi nancial asset takes into account a market par" cipant’s ability to generate economic benefi ts by using 

the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market par" cipant that would use the asset in 

its highest and best use.

 The Company uses valua" on techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suffi  cient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 

use of unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabili" es for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the fi nancial statements are categorised 

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is signifi cant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole:

 Ø Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in ac" ve markets for iden" cal assets or liabili" es

 Ø Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

 Ø Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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 External valuers are involved for valua! on of signifi cant assets & liabili! es. Involvement of external valuers 

is decided by the management of the company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selec! on criteria 

include market knowledge, reputa! on, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

2.8  Recent Accoun! ng Pronouncement

 New Standards / Amendments to Exis! ng Standard issued but not yet eff ec! ve upto the date of issuance of 

the Company’s Financial Statement are disclosed below:

 a) Ind AS 116 Leases was no! fi ed on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices 

thereto. Ind AS 116 is eff ec! ve for annual periods beginning on or a$ er April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets 

out the principles for the recogni! on, measurement, presenta! on and disclosure of leases and requires 

lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accoun! ng for 

fi nance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recogni! on exemp! ons for lessees – leases 

of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 

months or less).

  At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the 

lease liability) and an asset represen! ng the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., 

the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease 

liability and the deprecia! on expense on the right-of-use asset. 

  Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., 

a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resul! ng from a change in an index or rate 

used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement 

of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

  Lessor accoun! ng under Ind AS 116 is substan! ally unchanged from today’s accoun! ng under Ind AS 

17. Lessors will con! nue to classify all leases using the same classifi ca! on principle as in Ind AS 17 and 

dis! nguish between two types of leases: opera! ng and fi nance leases.

  The Company intends to adopt this standard. However, adop! on of this standard is not likely to have a 

signifi cant impact in its Financial Statements.

 b) The Companies (Indian Accoun! ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 also no! fi ed amendments to 

the following accoun! ng standards. The amendments would be eff ec! ve from April 1, 2019.

  1. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes – Appendix C on uncertainty over income tax treatments

  2. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes – Accoun! ng for Dividend Distribu! on Taxes

  3. Ind AS 23, Borrowing costs

  4. Ind AS 28 – Investment in associates and joint ventures

  5. Ind AS 103 and Ind AS 111 – Business combina! ons and joint arrangements

  6. Ind AS 109 – Financial instruments

  7. Ind AS 19 – Employee benefi ts

  The Company is in the process of evalua! ng the impact of such amendments.  

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 A summary of the signifi cant accoun! ng policies applied in the prepara! on of the fi nancial statements are 

as given below. These accoun! ng policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the 

fi nancial statements.

3.1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits 

with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignifi cant risk of change in value.
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 For the purpose of the statement of cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, term deposits 

and other short-term highly liquid investments, net of bank overdra" s as they are considered an integral part 

of the Company’s cash management. Bank overdra" s are shown within short term borrowings in the balance 

sheet.

3.2. INCOME TAX

 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 

on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdic# on adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabili# es 

a$ ributable to temporary diff erences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the 

statement of profi t & loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 

income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 

in equity, respec# vely.

3.2.1. Current Tax:

 Current tax liabili# es (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be 

paid to (recovered from) the taxa# on authori# es using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 

substan# vely enacted, at the end of the repor# ng period.

3.2.2. Deferred Tax

 Ø Deferred Tax assets and liabili# es is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 

when the asset is realized or the liability is se$ led based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 

or substan# vely enacted by the end of the repor# ng period.

 Ø Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary diff erences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabili# es for fi nancial repor# ng purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxa# on purposes 

(i.e., tax base). Deferred tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax 

credits.

 Ø Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profi t will be available 

against which the deduc# ble temporary diff erences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 

unused tax losses can be u# lized.

 Ø The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each repor# ng period. The Company 

reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that suffi  cient 

taxable profi t will be available to allow the benefi t of part or that en# re deferred tax asset to be u# lized. 

Any such reduc# on is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that suffi  cient taxable profi t will be 

available.

 Ø Deferred tax assets and liabili# es are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set off  current 

tax assets against current tax liabili# es and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxa# on 

authority and the Company intends to se$ le its current tax assets and liabili# es on a net basis.

3.3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

3.3.1. Tangible Assets

3.3.1.1. Recogni! on and Measurement:

 Ø Property, plant and equipment held for use in the produc# on or/and supply of goods or services, or for 

administra# ve purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated deprecia# on and 

accumulated impairment losses (if any).

 Ø Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including import 

du# es and non-refundable purchase taxes, a" er deduc# ng any trade discounts and rebates, any directly 

a$ ributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condi# on and loca# on for its intended use and 
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present value of any es! mated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which 

it is located.

 Ø If signifi cant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have diff erent useful lives, then they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Ø Profi t or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of 

Profi t and Loss.

3.3.1.2. Subsequent Measurement:

 Ø Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future 

economic benefi ts associated with the cost incurred will fl ow to the Company and the cost of the item 

can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 

derecognized when replaced.

 Ø Major Inspec! on/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of 

property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recogni! on criteria are sa! sfi ed. Any Unamor! zed 

part of the previously recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

3.3.1.3. Deprecia! on and Amor! za! on:

 Ø Deprecia! on on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided under Wri% en Down Method at rates determined 

based on the useful life of the respec! ve assets and the residual values in accordance with Schedule II of 

the Companies Act, 2013 or as reassessed by the Company based on the technical evalua! on.

 Ø In respect of spares for specifi c machinery, cost is amor! zed over the useful life of the related machinery 

as es! mated by the management. 

 Ø Deprecia! on on addi! ons (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the 

date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

 Ø Deprecia! on method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each fi nancial year-end and adjusted 

if appropriate.

3.3.1.4. Disposal of Assets

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefi ts 

are expected to arise from the con! nued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or re! rement 

of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the diff erence between net disposal proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

3.3.1.5. Capital Work in Progress

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construc! on period, 

interest on amount borrowed for acquisi! on of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connec! on 

with project implementa! on in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of 

commercial produc! on.

3.4. LEASES

3.4.1. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

 The determina! on of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at the incep! on of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfi lment of the 

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specifi c asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use 

the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specifi ed in an arrangement.
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3.4.2. Company as lessor

 Ø Finance Lease

  Leases which eff ec" vely transfer to the lessee substan" ally all the risks and benefi ts incidental to ownership 

of the leased item are classifi ed and accounted for as fi nance lease. Lease rental receipts are appor" oned 

between the fi nance income and capital repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Con" ngent rents 

are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

 Ø Opera" ng Lease

  Leases in which the Company does not transfer substan" ally all the risks and rewards of ownership of an 

asset are classifi ed as opera" ng leases. Rental income from opera" ng leases is recognized on a straight-

line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the 

Company with expected infl a" onary costs.

3.4.3. Company as lessee

 Ø Finance Lease

  Finance Leases, which eff ec" vely transfer to the lessee substan" ally all the risks and benefi ts incidental 

to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the 

minimum lease payments at the incep" on of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease Payments 

under such leases are appor" oned between the fi nance charges and reduc" on of the lease liability based 

on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly to the statement of profi t and loss.  

Lease management fees, legal charges and other ini" al direct costs are capitalized.

  If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, 

capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the es" mated useful life of the asset or the 

lease term.

 Ø Opera" ng Lease

  Assets acquired on leases where a signifi cant por" on of risk and reward is retained by the lessor are 

classifi ed as opera" ng leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profi t and loss on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term, except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with 

expected infl a" onary costs.

3.5. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS

 Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the Company sa" sfi es performance obliga" ons by 

transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obliga" ons are sa" sfi ed at a point of 

" me or over a period of " me. Performance obliga" ons sa" sfi ed over a period of " me are recognized as per the 

terms of relevant contractual agreements/arrangements. Performance obliga" ons are said to be sa" sfi ed at a 

point of " me when the customer obtain controls of the asset.

 Revenue is measured based on transac" on price, which is the fair value of the considera" on received or 

receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added tax. Transac" on price is recognized based on the 

price specifi ed in the contract, net of the es" mated sales incen" ves/discounts. Accumulated experience is 

used to es" mate and provide for the discounts/right of return, using the expected value method.

3.6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

3.6.1. Short Term Benefi ts

 Short term employee benefi t obliga" ons are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the 

related services are provided. Liabili" es for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefi ts that are 

expected to be se% led wholly within twelve months a& er the end of the period in which the employees render 

the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the repor" ng period.
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3.7. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

 Government grants are recognised at their fair value, where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will 

be received and all a! ached condi" ons will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is 

recognised as income on a systema" c basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to 

compensate, are expensed. 

 The grant rela" ng to the acquisi" on/ construc" on of an item of property, plant and equipment are included in 

non-current liabili" es as deferred income and are credited to profi t or loss on the same systema" c basis as the 

respec" ve assets are depreciated over their expected life and are presented within other opera" ng income.

3.8. BORROWING COSTS

 Ø Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an en" ty incurs in connec" on with the 

borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs also includes foreign exchange diff erence to the extent regarded as 

an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

 Ø Borrowing costs directly a! ributable to the acquisi" on or construc" on of a qualifying asset are capitalized 

as a part of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substan" al period of " me to complete and 

prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

 Ø Transac" on costs in respect of long term borrowing are amor" zed over the tenure of respec" ve loans 

using Eff ec" ve Interest Rate (EIR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of 

profi t and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 A fi nancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a fi nancial asset of one en" ty and a fi nancial liability or 

equity instrument of another en" ty.

3.9.1. Financial Assets 

 Ø Recogni" on and Ini" al Measurement:

  All fi nancial assets are ini" ally recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instruments. A fi nancial asset is ini" ally measured at fair value plus, in the case of fi nancial assets 

not recorded at fair value through profi t or loss, transac" on costs that are a! ributable to the acquisi" on 

of the fi nancial asset. 

 Ø Classifi ca" on and Subsequent Measurement:

  For purposes of subsequent measurement, fi nancial assets are classifi ed in four categories:

  • Measured at Amor" zed Cost;

  • Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI);

  • Measured at Fair Value Through Profi t or Loss (FVTPL); and

  • Equity Instruments designated at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

 o Measured at Amor! zed Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amor" zed cost if both the following 

condi" ons are met:

  r The asset is held within a business model whose objec" ve is achieved by both collec" ng contractual 

cash fl ows; and

  r The contractual terms of the fi nancial asset give rise on specifi ed dates to cash fl ows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

  A& er ini" al measurement, such fi nancial assets are subsequently measured at amor" zed cost using the 

eff ec" ve interest rate (EIR) method. Amor" sed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
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premium on acquisi! on and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amor! sa! on is 

included in fi nance income in the statement of profi t or loss. The losses arising from impairment are 

recognised in the profi t or loss. This category generally applies to trade receivables, cash and bank 

balances, loans and other fi nancial assets of the company.

 o Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the following condi! ons are 

met:

  r The objec! ve of the business model is achieved by both collec! ng contractual cash fl ows and selling 

the fi nancial assets; and

  r The asset’s contractual cash fl ows represent SPPI. 

  Debt instruments mee! ng these criteria are measured ini! ally at fair value plus transac! on costs. They 

are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in 

other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. 

Interest calculated using the eff ec! ve interest method is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss in 

investment income. 

 o Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does 

not meet the criteria for categoriza! on as at amor! zed cost or as FVTOCI, is classifi ed as FVTPL. In addi! on, 

the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amor! zed cost or FVTOCI 

criteria, as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with 

all changes recognized in the statement of profi t and loss. Equity instruments which are, held for trading 

are classifi ed as at FVTPL.

 o Equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI: For equity instruments, which has not been classifi ed as FVTPL 

as above, the company may make an irrevocable elec! on to present in other comprehensive income 

subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such elec! on on an instrument-by-instrument 

basis. The classifi ca! on is made on ini! al recogni! on and is irrevocable. In case the company decides 

to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding 

dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale 

of investment.

 Ø Derecogni! on:

  The Company derecognizes a fi nancial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash 

fl ows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the fi nancial asset and substan! ally all the risks and 

rewards of ownership of the asset to another en! ty. 

  Ø Impairment of Financial Assets:

  The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a fi nancial asset or a group of fi nancial assets 

is impaired. Ind AS – 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The 

company recognizes impairment loss for trade receivables that do not cons! tute a fi nancing transac! on 

using expected credit loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of 

historical credit loss experience. For all other fi nancial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an 

amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life ! me expected 

credit losses if the credit risk on the fi nancial asset has increased signifi cantly since ini! al recogni! on.

3.9.2. Financial Liabili! es

 Ø Recogni! on and Ini! al Measurement:

  Financial liabili! es are classifi ed, at ini! al recogni! on, as at fair value through profi t or loss, loans and 

borrowings, payables or as deriva! ves, as appropriate. All fi nancial liabili! es are recognized ini! ally at fair 

value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly a' ributable transac! on costs. 
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 Ø Subsequent Measurement:

  Financial liabili! es are measured subsequently at amor! zed cost or FVTPL. A fi nancial liability is classifi ed 

as FVTPL if it is classifi ed as held-for-trading, or it is a deriva! ve or it is designated as such on ini! al 

recogni! on.  Financial liabili! es at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any 

interest expense, are recognized in profi t or loss. Other fi nancial liabili! es are subsequently measured at 

amor! zed cost using the eff ec! ve interest rate method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and 

losses are recognized in profi t or loss. Any gain or loss on derecogni! on is also recognized in profi t or loss.

 Ø Derecogni! on:

 A fi nancial liability is derecognized when the obliga! on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

3.9.3. Off se�  ng fi nancial instruments

 Financial assets and liabili! es are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a 

legally enforceable right to off set the recognized amounts and there is an inten! on to se$ le on a net basis or 

realize the asset and se$ le the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be con! ngent on 

future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency 

or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.10. Earnings Per Share

 Basic Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profi t for the year a$ ributable to equity holders 

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is calculated by 

dividing the profi t a$ ributable to equity holders adjusted for the eff ects of poten! al equity shares by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of 

equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilu! ve poten! al equity shares into equity shares.

3.11. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

 The Company assesses, at each repor! ng date, whether there is an indica! on that an asset may be impaired. 

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher 

of value in use and net selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash fl ow expected over 

the balance useful lives of the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 

lowest levels for which there are separately iden! fi able cash infl ows which are largely independent of the cash 

infl ows from other assets or group of assets (Cash Genera! ng Units – CGU).

 An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profi t and Loss in the year in which an 

asset is iden! fi ed as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earlier accoun! ng period is reversed if there 

has been an improvement in recoverable amount.

3.12. Provisions, Con! ngent Liabili! es and Con! ngent Assets

3.12.1. Provisions

 Provisions are recognized when there is a present obliga! on (legal or construc! ve) as a result of a past event 

and it is probable that an ou& low of resources embodying economic benefi ts will be required to se$ le the 

obliga! on and a reliable es! mate can be made of the amount of the obliga! on. Provisions are determined 

by discoun! ng the expected future cash fl ows (represen! ng the best es! mate of the expenditure required 

to se$ le the present obliga! on at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that refl ects current market 

assessments of the ! me value of money and the risks specifi c to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is 

recognized as fi nance cost.

3.12.2. Con! ngent Liabili! es

 Con! ngent liability is a possible obliga! on arising from past events and the existence of which will be confi rmed 

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 

of the Company or a present obliga! on that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not 
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possible that an ou! low of resources embodying economic benefi t will be required to se# le the obliga$ ons or 

reliable es$ mate of the amount of the obliga$ ons cannot be made. The Company discloses the existence of 

con$ ngent liabili$ es in Other Notes to Financial Statements.

3.12.3. Con! ngent Assets

 Con$ ngent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of 

an infl ow of economic benefi ts. Con$ ngent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an infl ow of 

economic benefi ts is probable.

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 Es$ mates and judgements are con$ nually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other 

factors, including expecta$ ons of future events that may have a fi nancial impact on the Company and that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Informa$ on about Signifi cant judgements and Key sources 

of es$ ma$ on made in applying accoun$ ng policies that have the most signifi cant eff ects on the amounts 

recognized in the fi nancial statements is included in the following notes:

 Ø Recogni! on of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based 

on an assessment of probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax 

assets can be u$ lized. In addi$ on, signifi cant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or 

economic limits.

 Ø Useful lives of depreciable / amor! sable assets (tangible and intangible): Management reviews its 

es$ mate of the useful lives of depreciable / amor$ sable assets at each repor$ ng date, based on the 

expected u$ lity of the assets. Uncertain$ es in these es$ mates relate to actual normal wear and tear that 

may change the u$ lity of plant and equipment.

 Ø Classifi ca! on of Leases: The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classifi ca$ on 

of the leasing arrangement as a fi nance lease or opera$ ng lease is based on an assessment of several 

factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s 

op$ on to purchase and es$ mated certainty of exercise of such op$ on, propor$ on of lease term to the 

asset’s economic life, propor$ on of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset 

and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

 Ø Provisions and Con! ngencies: The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and con$ ngencies 

have been made in accordance with Indian Accoun$ ng Standards (Ind AS) 37, ‘Provisions, Con$ ngent 

Liabili$ es and Con$ ngent Assets’. The evalua$ on of the likelihood of the con$ ngent events is applied best 

judgement by management regarding the probability of exposure to poten$ al loss.

 Ø Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at 

amor$ zed cost annually, or more frequently when there is indica$ on of impairment. If recoverable amount 

is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018 (Contd.)



The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited40

(` in lacs)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019 (Contd.)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Par!culars

Year Ended 31st March 2019

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Deprecia!on Net 

Carrying 

Amount
As at 

31st March 

2018

Addi!ons Disposals As at 

31st March 

2019

As at 

31st March 

2018

Deprecia!on 

charged 

during the 

year 

Deduc!ons As at 

31st March 

2019

Land-Freehold  30,42,930 77500 -  31,20,430  -    -   -  -    31,20,430 

Buildings  16,55,775  -                      -    16,55,775  62,740 28217                    -    90,957  15,64,818 

Plant and 

Equipment

 4,43,302  -                     -    4,43,302  -    -                  -    -    4,43,302 

Roads and 

bridges

 3,187  -                      -    3,187  -    -                       -    -    3,187 

Total  51,45,194  77,500                  -    52,22,694  62,740  28,217              -    90,957  51,31,737 

Par!culars

Year Ended 31st March 2018

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Deprecia!on Net 

Carrying 

Amount
As at 

31st March 

2017

Addi!ons Disposals As at 

31st March 

2018

As at 

31st March 

2017

Deprecia!on 

charged 

during the 

year 

Deduc!ons As at 

31st March 

2018

Land-Freehold  30,42,930 - -  30,42,930  -    -    -    30,42,930 

Buildings  16,55,775  -    -    16,55,775  32,472 30268  -    62,740  15,93,035 

Plant and 

Equipment

 4,43,302  -    -    4,43,302  -    -    -    -    4,43,302 

Roads and 

bridges

 3,187  -    -    3,187  -    -    -    -    3,187 

Total  51,45,194  -    -    51,45,194  32,472  30,268  -    62,740  50,82,454 

Notes:

i)  The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment at its carrying value at the transi!on date as 

deemded cost.         

ii) Land includes ` 355,264/- (P.Y. ` 355,264/-), Building ` 1,564,818/- (P.Y. ` 1,593,035/-), Plant and Equipment ` 443,302/- (P.Y.

` 443,302/-), and Roads and bridges ` 3,187/- (P.Y. ` 3,187/-) are related to Rubberwood Factory situated in the state of Kerala 

which is not in opera!on for nearly 21 years pursuant to no!ce received from the Deputy Conservator of Forests (Protec!on), 

Trivandrum. Building out of these fixed assets men!oned above was impaired in earlier years considering the net realisable value 

of the same.         

iii)  Land includes ` 2,765,166/- (P.Y. ` 2,687,666/-) represents land situated at Goa, muta!on of which is in the process of 

comple!on.         
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(Amount in `)

 As at

31st March 2019 

 As at

31st March 2018 

6 NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance Income Tax/ TDS (Net of Provision)  15,40,907  15,38,709 

 15,40,907  15,38,709 

7 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Balances with Government & Statutory Authori!es *  56,448  56,448 

Total Other Assets  56,448  56,448 

* Includes payment under protest ` 56,448/- (Previous Year : ` 56,448/-) 

8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances With Banks :

In Current Account  5,98,618  2,42,957 

Cash in Hand  4,376  7,896 

 6,02,994  2,50,853 

9 BANK BALANCES (OTHER THAN NOTE: 8)

Fixed Deposit with Banks -  9,10,000 

Fixed Deposit Pledged with Sales Tax authori!es ` NIL/- 

(Previous Year : ` 10,000/-)

-  9,10,000 

10 OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS

Interest accrued on Fixed deposit  -    6,762 

 -    6,762 

11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances to Suppliers & Service Providers  4,44,500  5,37,000 

Total Other Assets  4,44,500  5,37,000 

 As at 31st March 2019  As at 31st March 2018 

No. of Shares  Amount No. of Shares  Amount 

12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

12.1 Authorised Share Capital

Equity Shares:

Ordinary Shares of ` 10/- each 49,50,000 4,95,00,000 49,50,000 4,95,00,000 

Preference Shares:

12% Cumula!ve Preference Shares of ` 100/- each     5,000 5,00,000          5,000 5,00,000 

5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 

12.2 Issued Share Capital

Ordinary Shares of ` 10/- each 17,71,908 1,77,19,080 17,71,908 1,77,19,080 

17,71,908 1,77,19,080 17,71,908 1,77,19,080 

12.3 Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

Ordinary Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up 17,71,908 1,77,19,080 17,71,908 1,77,19,080 

17,71,908 1,77,19,080 17,71,908 1,77,19,080 

12.4 Reconcilia!on of the number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

 There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 

year.
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(Amount in `)

12.5 Terms/ Rights a�ached to Equity Shares :

 The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Ordinary Shares having par value of ` 10/- per share. Each 

holder of Ordinary Shares is en!tled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend.  The dividend proposed 

by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee!ng, 

except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquida!on, the ordinary shareholders are eligible to receive the 

remaining assets of the Company a"er payment of all preferen!al amounts, in propor!on to their shareholding. 

12.6 Shareholding Pa�ern with respect of Holding or Ul!mate Holding Company

 The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ul!mate Holding Company.

12.7 Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

 As at 31st March 2019  As at 31st March 2018 

 No. of 

Shares 

 % Holding  No. of 

Shares 

 % Holding 

Ordinary Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid

Joonktollee Tea and Industries Limited  4,37,294 24.68%  4,37,294 24.68%

The Oriental Company Limited  3,23,447 18.25%  3,23,447 18.25%

Life Insurance Corpora!on of India  3,04,442 17.18%  3,04,442 17.18%

Madhav Trading Corpora!on Limited  1,27,064 7.17%  1,27,064 7.17%

Gloster Limited (Formerly Ke#lewell 

Bullen and Company Limited)

 98,939 5.58%  98,939 5.58%

Hemant Kumar Bangur HUF  92,396 5.21%  92,396 5.21%

12.8 No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under op!ons and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ 

disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

12.9 No Ordinary Shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of 5 years preceding the date as at 

which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

12.10 No securi!es conver!ble into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.

12.11 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.

 As at

31st March 2019 

 As at

31st March 2018

13 OTHER EQUITY

Capital Redemp!on Reserve  13.1  1,13,300  1,13,300 

Retained Earnings 13.2  (2,84,77,569)  (2,45,28,330)

 (2,83,64,269)  (2,44,15,030)

a) Capital Redemp!on Reserve: The Company has recognised Capital Redemp!on Reserve on redemp!on of 

preference shares from its retained earnings. The amount in Capital Redemp!on Reserve is equal to nominal 

amount of the preference shares redeemed.

b) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings represent accumulated profits earned by the Company and remaining 

undistributed as on date.
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13.1 Capital Redemp!on Reserve

 As at

31st March 2019 

 As at

31st March 2018 

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year  1,13,300  1,13,300 

13.2 Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  (2,45,28,330)  (2,16,15,817)

Add: Profit/Loss for the year  (39,49,239)  (29,12,513)

Balance at the end of the year  (2,84,77,569)  (2,45,28,330)

Total Reserve & Surplus  (2,83,64,269)  (2,44,15,030)

14 BORROWINGS

Unsecured  1,95,00,000  1,50,00,000 

Loan from Body Corporates  1,95,00,000  1,50,00,000 

15 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade Payables for goods and services

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises

 93,150  71,551 

 93,150  71,551 

16 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 -    -   

 -    -   

17 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory Dues  Payable  8,625  6,625 

 8,625  6,625 

 

(Amount in `)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019 (Contd.)



The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited44

For the year ended 

31st March, 2019

For the year ended

31st March, 2018

18 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income at amortised cost

On Bank Deposits  21,468  21,600 

On Inter Corporate Deposits and Others  -    12,930 

Other Non Operating Income

Miscellaneous Income   -    29,384 

 21,468  63,914 

19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries & Wages  49,000  24,000 

 49,000  24,000 

20 FINANCE COST

Other Borrowing Costs

Other Financial Charges  19,60,766  14,45,590 

Others  7,726  2,678 

 19,68,492  14,48,268 

 19,68,492  14,48,268 

21 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

On Tangible Assets  28,217  30,268 

 28,217  30,268 

22 OTHER EXPENSES

Selling and Administration Expenses

Rates & Taxes  47,440  45,730 

Auditors' Remuneration -

Statutory Auditors -

Statutory Audit Fees  35,400  35,400 

For Certification  94,400  94,400 

Printing & Stationery  75,002  55,181 

Postage and Telegram  46,553  44,994 

Legal & Professional Fees  2,34,103  6,44,932 

Director Sitting Fees  1,00,000  96,000 

Other Miscellaneous Expenses  12,92,100  4,57,254 

 19,24,998  14,73,891 

23 EARNING PER SHARES

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (`)  10  10 

Profit attributed to the Equity shareholders of the Company  (39,49,239)  (29,12,513)

Weighted average number of equity shares  17,71,908  17,71,908 

Basis and diluted earning per shares (`)  (2.23)  (1.64)

There are no dilutive equity shares in the Company.

(Amount in `)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019 (Contd.)



Statutory Reports Financial Section

Annual Report 2018-19 45

24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, CONTINGENT ASSETS & COMMITMENT TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR:

24.1 Con!ngent Liabili!es

Sl. 

No.
Par!culars

As at

31st March 2019

As at

31st March 2018

A Claims/Disputes/Demands not acknowledged as debts -

i. Income Tax under appeal

(Payment under protest - ` 12,66,774/-, Previous Year - ` 12,66,774/-)

 63,33,870  63,33,870 

ii. Central Sales Tax/ VAT

(Payment under protest - ` 56,448/-, Previous Year - ` 56,448/-)

 7,92,906  2,69,779 

24.2 Commitments

i. Es!mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital 

Account (net of advances)

 20,00,000 -

25 DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT 

ACT, 2006, TO THE EXTENT ASCERTAINED, AND AS PER NOTIFICATION NUMBER GSR 679 "E# DATED 4TH 

SEPTEMBER, 2015

Sl. 

No.
Par!culars

As at

31st March 2019

As at

31st March 2018

i The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 

to any supplier at the end of each financial year.

- -

ii The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of sec!on 16 of the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along 

with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day during each accoun!ng year.

- -

iii The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 

making payment but without adding the interest specified under the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- -

iv The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 

each accoun!ng year

- -

v The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, un!l such date when the interest dues above are 

actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance 

of a deduc!ble expenditure under sec!on 23 of the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- -

The above informa!on has been determined to the extent such par!es iden!fied on the basis of informa!on available 

with the Company.

26 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

26.1 Name of the related par!es and descrip!on of rela!onship

 A Enterprise having significant influence over the Company (by virtue of having more than 20% vo!ng rights)

  - Joonktollee Tea & Industries Limited

 B Key Management Personnel

  - Mr. R.K. Gupta - Whole!me Director

  - Mr. A.K. Ruia - Chief Financial Officer

  - Mr. M. Kandoi - Company Secretary 

(Amount in `)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019 (Contd.)



The Cochin Malabar Estates And Industries Limited46

26.2 Summary of transac�ons with the related par�es

Par�culars
Enterprise having significant 

influence over the Company

Key Management Personnel

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Loan Received  -    35,00,000  -    -   

Loan Refunded  -    35,00,000  -    -   

Interest Expenses  -    1,85,261  -    -   

Remunera!on  -    -    49,000  24,000 

26.3 Key Management Personnel compensa�on

Par�culars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019

For the year ended

31st March, 2018

Short-term employee benefits  49,000  24,000 

Total compensation  49,000  24,000 

26.4 Major terms and condi�ons of transac�ons with related par�es

 Transac!ons with related par!es are carried out in the normal course of business and are made on terms equivalent 

to those that prevail in arm’s length transac!ons.

27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Categories of Financial Assets & Financial Liabili!es as at 31st March 2019 and 31st March 2018

Par�culars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018

FVTPL FVOCI Amor�zed 

Cost

FVTPL FVOCI Amor�zed 

Cost

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  6,02,994  2,50,853 

Bank Balance other than above  -    9,10,000 

Other Financial Assets  -    6,762 

Total Financial Assets                 -                 -    6,02,994                  -                   -    11,67,615 

Financial Liabili�es

Borrowings  1,95,00,000  1,50,00,000 

Trade Payables  93,150  71,551 

Other Financial Libili!es  -    -   

Total Financial Liabili�es                 -                 -    1,95,93,150                  -          -    1,50,71,551 

28 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

28.1 The following is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial 

instruments that are measured at amor!zed cost:

Par�culars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018

Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  6,02,994  6,02,994  2,50,853  2,50,853 

Bank Balance other than above  -    -    9,10,000  9,10,000 

Other Financial Assets  -    -    6,762  6,762 

Total Financial Assets  6,02,994  6,02,994  11,67,615  11,67,615 

(Amount in `)
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Par!culars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018

Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value Carrying 

Amount

Fair Value

Financial Liabili!es

Borrowings  1,95,00,000  1,95,00,000  1,50,00,000  1,50,00,000 

Trade Payables  93,150  93,150  71,551  71,551 

Other Financial Libili!es  -    -   

Total Financial Liabili!es  1,95,93,150 1,95,93,150  1,50,71,551  1,50,71,551 

28.2 The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,  trade payables, borrowings, and 

other financial liabili!es approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturi!es of these 

instruments.

28.3 The following methods and assump!ons were used to es!mate the fair values:

28.3.1 The fair values for loans,  were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are 

classified as Level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including 

counterparty credit risks, which has been assessed to be insignificant.

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial management of the Company has been receiving a$en!on of the top management of the Company. Various 

kinds of financial risks and their mi!ga!on plans are as follows:

29.1 Liquidity Risk

 The Company determines its liquidity requirement in the short, medium and long term. This is done by drawings 

up cash forecast for short term and long term needs.

 The Company manage its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obliga!ons without any 

significant delay or stress. Such risk is managed through ensuring opera!onal cash flow while at the same !me 

maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalent posi!on. The management has arranged for diversified funding 

sources and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity monitoring future cash flow and liquidity on a 

regular basis. 

29.1.1 Maturity Analysis for financial liabili!es

 The following are the remaining contractual maturi!es of financial liabili!es as at 31st March 2019

a Par!culars On Demand Less than 6 

months

6 months to 

1 year

1 years to 5 

years

More than 5 

years

Total

Borrowings 1,95,00,000  1,95,00,000 

Trade payables  93,150  93,150 

Total 1,95,00,000  93,150  1,95,93,150 

b The following are the remaining contractual maturi!es of financial liabili!es as at 31st March 2018

Par!culars On Demand Less than 6 

months

6 months to 

1 year

1 years to 5 

years

More than 5 

years

Total

Borrowings  1,50,00,000  1,50,00,000 

Trade payables  71,551  71,551 

Total  1,50,00,000  71,551  1,50,71,551 

(Amount in `)
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c The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact 

of ne!ng agreements (if any). It is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur 

significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.

29.2.1 Foreign Exchange Risk

 Foreign Exchange Risk is the exposure of the Company to the poten%al impact of movements in foreign exchange 

rates. There is no exposure of foreign currency and hence the management has assessed that there is no foreign 

currency risk during the year (Previous Year: ` Nil)

29.2.2 Interest Rate Risk

 The Company has borrowings which carries fixed rate of interest. The management has assessed that  exposure 

of the Company in interest rate risk at the end of the year is ` Nil (Previous Year: ` Nil)

30 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company objec%ve to manage its capital is to ensure con%nuity of business while at the same %me provide reasonable 

returns to its various stakeholders but keep associated costs under control. Sourcing of capital is done through judicious 

combina%on of equity/internal accruals and borrowings. Net debt (total borrowings less investments and cash and cash 

equivalents) to equity ra%o is used to monitor capital.

Par!culars
 As at

31st March 2019 

 As at

31st March 2018 

Net Debt  1,95,00,000  1,50,00,000 

Total Equity  (1,06,45,189)  (66,95,950)

Net Debt to Equity Ra%o*  -    -   

As the Company is having nega%ve networth as on 31st March, 2019 & 31st March, 2018, debt equity ra%o cannot be 

computed.

31. The Networth of the Company has been fully eroded. The Company is developing its land assets in Goa based on 

which the going concern status of the Company is maintained.

32. In an earlier year the Company had received en%re sale considera%on in respect of sale of Kinalur Estate. The 

process of registra%on of Land in the name of few buyers are in the process of comple%on.

33. The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets during the year in absence of reasonable certainity of future 

taxable income.

34. The previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

(Amount in `)
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